MINUTES

FORT MYERS BEACH

Local Planning Agency
Town Hall – Council Chambers

2523 Estero Boulevard

Fort Myers Beach, FL 33931

Tuesday, May 11, 2010
I. CALL TO ORDER

Meeting was called to order at 9:10AM by Chairperson Joanne Shamp. Other members present:
Joe Kosinski 

Carleton Ryffel


Rochelle Kay


John Kakatsch


Chuck Moorefield-excused 


Bill Van Duzer-excused


Staff present:  Dr. Frank Shockey
LPA Attorney, Anne Dalton

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE and INVOCATION
Rochelle Kay
The Chair recognized the newest member, Joe Kosinski, who then gave a brief resume to the group.
III. MINUTES
A. Minutes of April 13, 2010
Motion:   Mr. Ryffel moved to approve the minutes, as recorded.

Seconded by Mr. Kosinski;

Vote:   Motion passed 5-0

IV. ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA
A. Appointment of member liaison to Town Council M&P meetings and for CIP process monitoring
Ms. Shamp stated that this was a result of the recent joint meeting and asked for the member’s opinions and asked for a volunteer for CIP.  She asked if anyone has a strong background in business.  Mr. Kosinski and Mr. Ryffel said they didn’t feel qualified to do this.  Ms. Kay also didn’t feel comfortable, nor did Mr. Kakatsch.  Ms. Dalton clarified that this position does not absolutely require a business background and said it is not a decision-making position.  Rather, she explained, it is more of an administrative job in that it involves helping to get timely information from the LPA to Council and back in a timely manner and keeping communication going.  Mr. Kakatsch said that he would volunteer but only if there was no one else because he does not yet feel comfortable, being new.  
Motion:    Ms. Shamp moved to appoint Ms. Kay as the liaison to Town Council M&P for

      CIP process monitoring.

Seconded by Mr. Ryffel;

Vote:        Motion passed 5-0.
Ms. Shamp commended Ms. Kay for “stepping up” to take this position and for her constant willingness to serve on committees, attend Council meetings, etc.
B. Appointment of a member as liaison to Lee County LPA

Mr. Ryffel was suggested and indicated he would accept.

Motion:    Mr. Kakatsch moved to appoint Mr. Ryffel to be liaison to the Lee County LPA.

Seconded by Mr. Kosinski;

Vote:         Motion passed 5-0. 
Ms. Dalton suggested appointing an alternate to this position.  Mr. Kosinski volunteered to do this.  Dr. Shockey will advise the county who the new liaisons are as to have them included in communications.  
C. Discussion of concepts related to sign regulations
Ms. Shamp referred to the meeting materials before the members and thanked Dr. Shockey and Ms. Dalton for their exhaustive work on the memorandum regarding this issue.  
Dr. Shockey gave a brief overview of the reasons and methods of regulating the signs the Town, as well as explaining several issues involved in defining types of signs and avoiding using the content of signs as a method of regulating signs.  He stressed that discretion needs to be limited and that clear standards are important so that signs are allowed or not allowed for the right reasons.  
Several detailed articles by experts about the issues involved in regulating signs were included with the report prepared by Dr. Shockey and he summarized some of the most important highlights from each and talked about how this information should be kept in mind as the LPA addresses the sign ordinance in the future.  The present ordinance will need to be refashioned in several ways, but basically, he is trying to stick with the basic height and area limits of the ordinance with which residents have become familiar.  The method of getting there has to be done correctly, however.
Ms. Dalton added that animals and signs are two of the most controversial items that any government entity can undertake and said that this body has addressed an animal ordinance with, so far, no complaints.  However, she cautioned, this issue is much more controversial.  Thankfully, she said, this body does not have to deal with billboards, since the Town does not have any billboards, and suggested that the LPA start fresh with newly created legislation rather than try to make the current ordinance fit their needs.  

Ms. Shamp asked for clarification of the terms “on premise” and “off premise” as these are used on the island.  Dr. Shockey said that this is a difficult topic to define as some forms may be considered “protected forms of speech” and the content may not have anything to do with what is taking place on the premises and yet be something that cannot be prohibited.  Signs that pertain to commercial transactions with things sold on that property, and the sign is on the same property, can easily be considered “on premises.”  A commercial sign that talks about products/concepts not sold on that property could easily be considered “off premises.”  But on the other hand, a sign that says “vote for Bush” or “vote for Gore” doesn’t pertain to anything on the premises since Bush and Gore aren’t on the premises, and yet the Town can’t intentionally or accidently prohibit the display of such signs completely.  Ms. Shamp also asked if there were plans to hold a sign issue workshop and if he thought that the LPA should read the current sign ordinance in advance to better understand it.  Ms. Dalton agreed that a workshop would be advisable since some of these issues are First Amendment items, some are technical and some are safety/hurricane oriented items and there will be policy issues rolled up with legal issues.  She also agreed that it would be good for the LPA members to become familiar with the current ordinance.  
Mr. Ryffel agreed that there is nothing tougher than signs when looking at local ordinances and this will take legal help.  He added that the final decision in many matters may come down to what the Town can do legally, not aesthetic preferences or anything else.  
Ms. Kay opined that the section one article which that referred to “the presumption of aesthetics alone as a basis for land use regulations” was a good line for consideration.  She commented that Sanibel Island’s approach to handling signs has been fairly successful and noted that some residents have already changed their signs.  
Mr. Kakatsch said that Sanibel has a variety of signage rules, some he agrees with and some not.  He asked if the ordinance would apply to mobile signs as well and Ms. Dalton answered that it would, although she wonders if it should include people, some in costume, holding signs. Additionally, Mr. Kakatsch wondered if colors and certain symbols could be considered signs if they are specifically used to identify certain businesses, like trademarks.  
Ms. Shamp opened the meeting to Public Comment on the sign issue.  Lee Melsek asked the LPA to become familiar with how the sign law got put into place initially, and he gave an account about how hard some residents had worked putting together the current ordinance.  He added that there are over 7,000 permanent residents on the beach, most of whom do not own businesses here, who do not prosper from businesses here, people who retire or raise their families here, all who have as much right to have a beautiful community as those who have the right to fly flags or banners or put sandwich signs in the middle of the sidewalks.  He does not agree that the ordinance needs to be rewritten and said there are many residents who agree.  He asked the members to think hard about the rights of all of the residents and not only the businesses.  He agreed with Ms. Kay’s admiration of Sanibel in not having as many aesthetic problems as FMB and he said the problem is that the current law is just not enforced, not that there needs to be a new law. 

Jean Matthew said that she was one of the people who wrote the ordinance up about eleven years ago and said that it took a painful year of meetings and discussions to draw it up.  She agreed with Mr. Melsek in her opinion that most of the current law is fine; it’s just not being enforced.  She cautioned the LPA to be aware of the job they are trying to do and all of the ramifications involved.
Ms. Shamp thanked the public for their comments and, with nothing further, closed Public Comment. She said that there is certainly a need for a workshop for public voices to be heard and there should also be a review of the Comp Plan.  She agreed with the public comment that the present ordinance, and the Comp Plan, is the vision of the people who have lived there and contributed to the island’s plans years ago. Ms. Dalton commented that perhaps the workshop should be an evening one so more residents can attend and share their ideas.  Ms. Shamp heartily agreed and thought that some of the original members could be included to help craft the revised ordinance.  
Mr. Ryffel asked why the existing ordinance is not enforced.  Ms. Dalton said there are a few reasons, one being that there are constitutional issues involved, as well as technical problems.  She said there is also a question as to policy decisions like updating, etc., which would be policy issues rather than any other, that need to be discussed in the context of repairing it.  Dr. Shockey added that the main enforcement problem is that this must be accomplished in the proper way or no amount of attempted enforcement will accomplish what the people envisioned when they were working on the sign ordinance in the past.  
There was discussion as to when to hold the workshop and a timetable as to addressing the issue.  Jean Matthew commented that Roxie Smith and Betty Simpson were on the board when the original ordinance was created and could offer some input for the workshop. Ms. Shamp asked that some of the information about how the ordinance came into being originally be included for member review at the next meeting. 
Motion:    Mr. Ryffel moved to adjourn as the LPA and reconvene as the HPB.
Seconded by Mr. Kakatsch;

Vote:         Motion passed 5-0.

V. ADJOURN AS LPA-RECONVENE AS THE HPB
Ms. Kay called the meeting to order at 10:09 AM after a brief break.  She reported that the next presentation of historic plaques is planned to be later this month. Also noted were the excused absences of Mr. Van Duzer and Mr. Moorefield.
Ms. Kay said that the budget is still not finalized because they are presently working on historic plaques and that expense.  Ms. Kay mentioned that the Town is talking about taking over historic signage and Ms. Dalton clarified that she had said this but only in reference to LDC requirements.  The LPA/HPB would make a recommendation on the designation of an historic sign and the Council would make the final determination.  
Ms. Kay said there is still no decision about the Old San Carlos vista sign since Theresa has not gotten back to her with information.  The Phase 2 budget is $2000.00 for the next 17 structures for historic recognition.  Dr. Shockey suggested that he could include this as a line item in the next budget before Council. 

Motion:   Ms. Shamp moved that the HPB include a line item for Historic Recognition 

                 plaques in the LPA budget.

Seconded by Mr. Kakatsch;

Vote:        Motion passed 5-0, with 2 members absent. 
Ms. Shamp referred to the comments earlier about Council having final say on the historic signs and cited Sec. 30-56 of “non-conforming signs, Part B-the Designation of Historically Significant and/or Landmark Signs” which explains that the Council will only serve as the appeal board for signs that are denied this designation.  Ms. Dalton attempted to clarify that the initial responsibility was given to the LPA instead of the HPB.  She said there could be an HPB meeting to decide whether to recommend that jurisdiction should be transferred to the HPB to review these signs and said there are actually 3 choices for the HPB to consider.  First, when the time comes to review this section of the LDC, they can make a recommendation that there be no changes, meaning these would still go to the LPA, who would make the determination, with appeals going to Council.  Second, they could recommend that the LDC be changed so that the HPB is the determiner instead of the LPA and, third, do what Council has suggested, having the final decision being made by Council.  There was more discussion about the options and Ms. Shamp strongly suggested that this needs to be addressed as HPB as well as LPA and put on the HPB agenda for determination.  Dr. Shockey will be sure this is on the HPB agenda each time the sign ordinance is discussed by the LPA.  

Motion:   Mr. Ryffel moved to adjourn as the HPB and reconvene as the LPA.

Seconded by Mr. Kakatsch;

Vote:        Motion passed 5-0.

VI. ADJOUN AS HPB AND RECONVENE AS LPA

Reconvene at 11:23 AM with all above members still present.
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT
Ms. Shamp asked if any members of the public wished to speak.  
Mr. Frank Schilling said he wanted to comment on the sign ordinance.  He was concerned that the ordinance was going to be “scrapped” and a whole new ordinance created.  He opined that there will be a “real firestorm” among residents if there is no clear answer to why there has been no consistency in enforcement.  

Mr. Schilling then talked about his concern for the groin placement as part of a navigation project at the northern tip of the island, at Bowditch Point.  He said there is concern about what effects this groin may have on the beaches and asked if the LPA could study this and help decide if there is merit in waiting to perform additional studies to resolve the issue of the groin structure.  He asked rhetorically if it would be nonfeasance for the Town to ignore the construction issues on the beach.  He referred to papers in a packet he prepared to pass out the LPA and read an article that a resident had read to Town Council a few months ago.  The article basically highlighted that “the 240 ft. groin proposed by the county has been reviewed by the DEP” and that the DEP’s Structure Impact Review states “the design has a potential to starve the sandy beach areas and shoreline along the inside of the inlet.”  Mr. Schilling feels that the LPA has a duty to advise the Council on matters such as this and gave each member a packet of information and said that the LPA should take a look at this and make a recommendation to Council about it.  
Ms. Shamp said that, according to the LDC, the LPA has a duty to insure that “unique and natural characteristics of the island are preserved.”  The DEP statement implies that there is an expected impact to the island from this development and therefore this falls under that responsibility.  She referred to Sec. 26-77 “any use of hardened structures or structures along the Gulf of Mexico, is strongly discouraged by FMB Comp Plan would require a variance from the article.”  Also Sec. 14-3; a13, states “it is unlawful to deposit, install rocks, concrete…without a permit from the DEP and the Town.”   Sec. 10-01 “Applicability of Requirements” states “navigation projects are not exempt; beach renourishment projects are exempt.”  Ms. Shamp made a personal point, for the record, that she believes that they need to attend to this navigation channel and that something needs to be done at the north end.  She does not want any implication by her pointing these things out to the LPA that she feels otherwise and said that there is validity within the LDC to raise the issue about the permit and to be sure that process is followed  correctly and not whether this project should be done.  
Mr. Ryffel feels that the Town has “tinkered with this too long” and needs to get the groin in as soon as possible.  He feels that this is “nonsense about it’s going to impact beaches in the back bay,” and said that the idea is to keep the sand out of the back bay so it doesn’t have to be dredged every few years.  He has lost 4 ft. of vertical depth on his beach and feels that a severe tropical storm will “blow the whole north end of the island off.”   Mr. Ryffel said he is getting tired of listening to “this nonsense” and that the Town needs to get that groin in, and get the additional sand placed from Bowditch Park down to Lynhall Park because there is no beach left at Lynhall Park.  He said that he does not want to discuss the issue anymore and remains with his opinion that that groin and the sand need to be in as soon as possible.  Ms. Dalton interjected here that the LPA should avoid discussion “going back and forth” in the public comment portion of the meeting.
Mr. Kosinski said he would be open to any background information but feels that information packets, etc., should go to the Council first before coming to the LPA for review, if Council wants LPA to participate.

Ms. Kay feels that the LPA should definitely be part of the process wherein the Town looks at permitting for a groin.

Mr. Kakatsch would also like to review the information Mr. Schilling has so there was then discussion as to what the proper process to do this would be.  It was decided that this would be put on the next agenda.
Mr. Schilling commented that he is “very much in favor of fixing Bowditch Point…it’s fixing it right.”  (Note:  Mr. Ryffel left the meeting at this point, 11:47 AM, leaving 4 members present and still having a quorum; he returned at 12:02)  
Mr. Melsek commented once again about the sign ordinance and the code enforcement process.  He said that the weekends are the typical times when code enforcement officers are not working and when the violators put out the illegal portable signs, such as sandwich signs.  Public comment was closed.

VIII. LPA MEMBER ITEMS AND REPORTS
Mr. Kosinski-nothing to report.
Mr. Ryffel will send a memo to the Council to suggest there be a code enforcement officer on duty 24 hours a day, especially on the weekends.

Ms. Kay-agrees with the need to enforce existing ordinances.

Mr. Kakatsch-agrees with above.

Ms. Shamp also agrees with the need for enforcement of existing laws, especially since the LPA works long and hard to create the ordinances.  She also reminded the members to add the new pages to the Comp Plan and gave a handout of recognition for Ms. Dalton’s valued work as Town and LPA attorney.  All members expressed their sorrow at her leaving and gave praise of her contributions to the beach.  
IX. LPA ATTORNEY ITEMS
Ms. Dalton thanked Mr. Kosinski for offering to serve the LPA and expressed her excitement at Mr. Van Duzer’s recovery and anticipated return.  She expressed her gratitude to all for the favorable conditions under which she has served in her capacity as LPA and Town attorney and shared her thoughts on her retirement and service to the Town.

X. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR ITEMS

Dr. Shockey agreed with the members and their opinions about code enforcement, noting that more than a year ago he suggested to the then-Town Manager that a third code enforcement position should be budgeted.  
XI. LPA ACTION LIST REVIEW

· Small scale amendment-done

· 135 Gulfview-TBD

· COP Expansion-TBD; Ms. Shamp will attend the Council meeting

· Refuse Containers-passed

· Shipwreck-Oct. 12, 2010

· ROW-Residential Connection-TBD

· Seasonal Parking-LPA hearing June 8, 2010

· Budget Request for Council-Dr. Shockey will get it on agenda; also June 8

· Resolution for discussion-Ms. Shamp

· Discuss any legal standing regarding groin issue

· Post-disaster item to be reviewed (Mr. Ryffel suggested this be “fast-tracked”)
XII. ADJOURNMENT
Motion:     Mr. Kakatsch moved to adjourn.

Seconded by Mr. Kosinski;
Vote:         Motion passes 5-0.

Meeting adjourned at 12:10PM.
Next meeting Tuesday June 8, 2010 at 9:00 AM.
Adopted _______________________ with/without changes.  Motion by ___________________



(DATE)

Vote:______________________  
________________________________________________

· End of document
LPA 20100511 Meeting

Page 8 of 8

